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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIRILITY
EOR FIN ST 8

The management of Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center-Zamboanga City, Inc. (Doing
Business Under the Name and Style of Premier Medical Center Zamboanga) is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached
therein, for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company'’s
ability to continue as a geing concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the geing concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or o cease operations, or has no realistic aiternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the stockheolders.

Mendoza Querido & Co., and Florivel M. De Jesus the independent audifors appointed by the
stockhclders for the year ended December 31, 2022, and December 31 2020 and 2021,
respectively, have audited the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the stockhelders, have expressed its opinicn on the
fairmess of presentation upon completion of such audit.

Treasurer i

ATTY. FATINA RITRA A. ABUALAS
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Mendoza Querido & Co.
N 16% Floor, The Salcedo Towers

169 HV. de la Costa St., Salcedo Vilage

Makati Gity 1227 Philippines
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PRCBOA Accreditation No. 0966
September 22, 2020, valid il
August 22, 2023

SEC Accreditation No. 0866-SEC (Group A)
lssued November 24, 2020
Valid for Financial Periods 2020 to 2024

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors

Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center-Zamboanga City, Ine.
(Doing Busines Under the Name and Style of

Premier Medical Center Zamboanga)

Don Alfaro Sireet, Tetuan

Zamboanga City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qpinion

We have audited the financial statements of Allied Care Experts (ACE)} Madical Center-Zamboanga
City, Inc. (Doing Business Under the Name and Styfe of Premier Medical Center Zamboanga) {the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022, and the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for
the three year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2022, and of its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(PFRS).

Basis for Opimion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance wilth the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020 were audited by another auditor whose report thereon dated June 30,
2022 expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.
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To the Steckhaiders and the Board of Directors

Allied Care Experts {ACE) Medical Center-Zamboanga City, Inc.
{Doing Busitess Under the Narme and Styfe of

Premiar Medical Center Zamboanga)

CNN and Go Law Office, 64 Tomas Claudio Street

Zamboanga City

We have sudited the financial statemerts of Allied Care Experts {ACE) Medical Center-Zamboanga
City, Inc. {Doing Btisiness Under the Name and Styie of Premier Medical Cenfer Zamboanga) for the
year ended December 31, 2022, on which we have rendered the attached report dated July 26, 2023,

In compliance with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Ruie 68, we are stating that the said
Company has a total number of thirty-six (36) stockholders owning one hundred {(100) or more shares
each.

For the Firm: MENDCOZA QUERIDO & CO.

RICHARD 5. QUERIDOC

Partner

CPA Certificate Mo. 84807

SEC Accrediation MNo. 84307-SEC [Group A}
lzsued November 24, 2020
Valid for Financial Periods 2020 to 2024

TIN 102-084-633

BIR Accrediiation MNo. 05-002617-002-2022
January 25, 2022, valid until January 24, 2025

PTR Neo. 9569440, Jaruary 7, 2023, Makati City

July 26, 2023



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the: financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Audifors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstaterent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
agaregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or errar, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the ovemide of internal contral.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in arder to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going cancern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying fransactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

=  Oblain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial stalemenls.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. Wea ramain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

M*\‘Q Mendoza Queride & Co. AP aa.



We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requiremenits regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremants

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplementary information on taxes, duties, license fees and schedules
prescribed under existing revenue issuances in Note 19 to the financial statements is presented for
purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Richard S,
Querido.

For the Firm: MENDOZA QUERIDO & CO.

RICHARD 5. QUERIDO

Partner

CPA Cerlificate No_ 84307

SEC Accreditation No. 84807-SEC (Group A)
Issued November 24, 2020
Valid for Financial Periods 2020 to 2024

TIM 102-094-633

BIR Accreditation No. 08-002617-002-2022
January 25, 2022, valid until January 24, 2025

PTR Mo. 9569440, January 7, 2023, Makati City

July 26, 2023
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ALLIED CARE EXPERTS (ACE) MEDICAL CENTER-ZAMBOANGA CITY, INC.
(Doing Busines Under the Name and Style of Premier Medical Center Zamboanga)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2022

{With Comparative Figures for 2021)

{Amounts In Phllippine Peso)

2022 onod
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash (Notezs 2, 3, 4 and 5) P51,004,080 P13,329,211
Input tax {Notes 2, 3 and 18) 80,125,502 £3,030,830
Total Current Assets 131,129,582 77,260,050
Moncurrent Assets
Property and equipment — net {Noies 2, 3, 6 and 18) BE85,844,823 648,314,815
Inlangible assef (Notes 2, Band 7) 155,224 173,661
Daoposit (Notes 2 and 3) 4,608 112 —
Total Noncurrent Assets 590,609,159 648,488,476
TOTAL ASSETS 21,738,741 P725, 757,626
= e v Lt ool
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Currant Liabilities
Trade and other payables (Notes 2, 3, 4 and 8) P66,483,780 P&4,518,527
Loans payable — current portion (Motes 2, 3, 4 and 9) 65,118,356 -
Income tax payable (Nole 2) 834 —
Total Current Liabilities 131,600,669 64,518,527
Nencurrent Liability
Loans paysh]; {Notes 2, 3, 4 and 8} §72,183,645 §07,500,000
Total Liabilities 803,784,314 672,018,527
Equity
Share capital (Notes 2 and 4) 285,458,000 85,807,000
Deficit {Notes 2 and 4) (67,503,573) (31,868,001)
Total Equity 217,054,427 53,738,909
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P1,024,738,741 P7es, 757,526
— —

Ss# sccompanying Noles fo Financial Stelements.

£a et ]



ALLIED CARE EXPERTS {ACE)} MEDICAL CENTER-ZAMBOANGA CITY, INC.
(Doing Busines Under the Name and Style of Premier Medical Center Zasmboanga)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
{With Comiparative Figures for 2021 and 2026)

(Amounts in Philippine Peso)
e 2022 2021 2020
OTHER INCOME (Noia 2 ) P53,393 P- P~
EXPENSES (Motes 2 and 10} {23,605,147) (8.977.311) (5,303,267}
FINANCE COST (Nctes 2 and 9) (12,083,284)  (5258,008) (1,152,163
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (35,635,038) (15,236,217) {6.455,450)
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX

{Notes 2 and 13) (534) = o
NET LOSS 8 E.EFBE,ESE.EE_Z} {P15,236,21 gPE,ﬁE,iﬁgl
LOSS PER SHARE {Notes 2 and 14) ___(P174.45) (P123.87) {P§7.24)

Thera was no other comprefianzlve income durlng the years ended Decesber 31, 2022 2021 and 2020,

See accompanying Notes fo Financlal Slalcmants,

AUG 2 4 2023



ALLIED CARE EXPERTS {ACE) MEDICAL CENTER-ZAMBOANGA CITY, INC.
{Doing Busines Under the Name and Style of Premier MMedical Center Zamboanga}

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
{With Comparaiive Figures for 2021 and 2020)
(Amounts in Philippine Pesa}

2022 2021 2020
AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL {Notes 2 and 4)
Commen shares — 179,400 shares
at P1,000 par value per share P178,400,000 P172,400,000 P179,400,000
Founder's shares = 600 shares
at P1,000 par value per share 800,000 &00,000 600,000
Preferred shares — 180,000 shares
at P1.000 par value per share 180,000,000 180,000,000 160,000,000
360,000,000 360,000,060 360,000,000
SUBSCRIBED COMMON SHARES
Balance at beginning of year — 150,400 shares
in 2022, 137,650 shares in 2021 and
134,650 shares in 2020 150,400,000 137,650,000 134,650,000
Current year issuance ~ 4,000 sharas in 2022
12,750 shares in 2021 and 3,000 shares in 2020 4,000,000 12,750,000 3,000,000
Balance at end of year - 154,400 shares in 2022
150,400 shares in 2021 and
137,650 shares in 2020 154,400,000 150,400,000 137,650,000
SUBSCRIBED FOUNDER'S SHARES
600 shares 600,000 500,000 600,050
SUBSCRIBED PREFERRED SHARES
Balance at beginning of year — 181,000 shares
in 2022, 138,250 shares in 2021 and
135,250 shares in 2020 151,000,060 138,250,000 135,250,000
Curment year issuance — 12,750 shares in 2021
and 3,000 shares in 2020 - 12,750,000 3,000,000
Balance at beginning of year — 151,000 shares
in 2022 and 2021 and 138,250 shares in 2020 151,040,600 151,000,000 138,250,000
SUBSCRIPTION RECEIVAEBLE
Balance at beginning of year (216,393,000} (225,000,000} (234,500,000)
Additions during the vear (4.000,000) (25500.000) {6,000,000)
Cellections during the vear 193,657,000 34,107,000 15,500,000
Balance at end of vear (20,542,000) (216,293,000) (225,000,000)
PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL 285,458,000 85,607,000 51,500,000
DEFICIT {Notes 2 and 4}
Balance at beginning of year (31,868,001} (16,631,784) ({10,176,334)
Net loss (35,635,572)  (15,236,217)  (6,455,450)
Batance at end of vear (67,503,573 {31,868,001) {16,631,784)
P217.954 427 P53, 738,809 P34 868, 216

Sa@ accomnanenyy Mofos ba Fingnel sl B1ut20ents



ALLIED CARE EXPERTS {ACE) MEDICAL CENTER-ZAMBOANGA CITY, INC.
{Doing Busines Under the Name and Style of Premier Medical Center Zamboanga)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEGEMBER 31, 2022
(With Comparative Figuras for 2021 and 202G)
{Amounts in Phifippine Peso}

2022 2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax (P35,635,038) (P15,236,217) (P6,455,450)
Adiustments to reconcile pretax loss to cash:

Finance cosat (Note 9} 12,083,284 5,258,906 1,152,183

Depreciation {Motes & and 10) 4,858,954 256,901 225,830

Amortization (Motes T and 10) 18,437 10,714 -
Loss before working capital changes {18,673,363) (2, 709,694) (5,077,337)
Incraase in input VAT {16,185,663) (31,967,936) (22,973,398)
Increase in trade and other payabies (Nota §) 1,965,253 63,327 029 1,187,140
Met cash generaied by (used in)

operaling activilies (32,893,773} 21,649,397  (26,863,595)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fayment of deposit {4.609,112) - -
Additions to property and equicment (MNote 6) {242,389,962) (331,522,508) (211,585 083)
Additions to infangible asset (Nole 7) - . {TT_,EEZ} {107,143}
Cash used in investing activilies {246,939,074) (331,599,737) (211,697,108}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proacaeds from loans payable (Hotes 8 and 15) 129,800,000 247 500,000 135,000,000
Procaeds from subseription of capital stock 190,851,600 34,107,000 15,500,000
Finance cost paid {MNote 8) {12,083,284) {5,258 ,808) (1,152,183}
Met cash provided by financing activities 317,567,716 276,348,094 149,347,817
NET INCREASE (DECREASE] IN CASH 37,674,869 (33,602,246) (83,212,884)
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 13,329,211 46,931,457 136,144,341
CASH AT END GF YE_&E P51,004,080 P13.329 211 P46,931, 457




ALLIED CARE EXPERTS (ACE) MEDICAL CENTER-ZAMBOANGA CITY, INC.
(Doing Busines Under the Name and Style of Premier Medical Center Zamboanga)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Genera! Information

Aliied Care Experls (ACE) Medical Center-Zamboanga City, Inc. {the Company) was registered
with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on December 18, 2015, primarily
to eslablish. maintain, operate, own, and manage hospitais, medical and relaled healthcare
facilities and business such as but without restriction to clinical laboralories, diagnostic centers,
ambulalory clinics. condo-hospitals, scientific research, and other allied undertakings and
services which shall provide medical. surgical, nursing. therapeulic, paramedic, or similar care,
provided that purely professional, medical, or surgical services shall be performed by duly
guaiified and licensed physicians or surgeons who may or may not be connected with the
hospitals and whose services shall be freely and individuatly contracted by the patients

On August 17, 2019, the majorily of the Board of Directors and the vote of the sharehoiders
owning and representing at least two-thirds of the outstanding share capital approved the
amendmeril of Article | of the Articles of Incorporation {AQI) by changing its name from Allied
Care Experts {ACE) Medical Center-Zamboanga City, Inc. to Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical
Center-Zamboanga Cily. Inc. Doing Business Under the Name and Style of Premier Medical
Center-Zamboanga City. On January 20, 2021, the SEC approved the amendment to the Articles
of incorporation of the Company to change its corporate name.

Its principal place of business is located at Don Alfaro Street, Tetuan, Zamboanga City.

The Company has nine (9) and seven (7) employees as at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

The accompanying financial statements of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021 were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on July 26, 2023

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Disclosures

Basis of Preparafion

The accompanying financial stalements of the Company have been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except as otherwise stated. Historical costs refer to the amount of cash paid to scquire an
asset or, in the case of exchange, the fair value of the consideration given to acquire an asset
The financial stalements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the functional and
presentation currency under the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). All values are
rounded 1o the nearest peso except as otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The accompanying financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine

Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). The term PFRS, in general. includes ali applicable
PFRS. Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS} and Interpretations issued by former Standing
interpretations Committee, the Phiippine Interpretations Committee and the International
Financial Reporting interpretations Committee (IFRIC), which have been approved by the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council and adopted by the Philippine SEC.



Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company consistently adopted and applied all accounting policies under PFRS which have
been issued and becomes effective except adoption of the following amendments effective
beginning January 1, 2022. Adoplion of these amendments to PFRS, PAS and Philippine
Interpretations did not have any significant impact on the Company's financial position or
performance unless otherwise indicated.

* Amendments 1o PFRS 3, "Refsrance fo the Concepiugl Framework”

The amendmenis updated the reference to the "Conceptual Framework " and an exception to
its requirement for an eniity to refer fo the "Concepfual Framework™ to determine what
conslitules an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for some types of liabililies and
cordingent [iabiiitss, an entity apnlving PFRS 2 should instesd rafer to PAS 37, "Provicions,
Contingent Lisbriiies and Conilngent Asssts”. This excaption is to avoid an unintended
consequence of updating the reference. Without the exceplion, an entity would have
recognized some liakiiities on the acquisition of a business that it would not recognize in other
cireumstances. Immediztely afier the acquisition, the entity would have had to derecognize
such liabilities and recognize a gain that did not depict an ecanomic gain.

The amendmenis will apply on future business combinations of the Company, if any.
= Amendments to PAS 16, "Froperty, Plant and Equinment - Proceeds before intended Use”

The amendments prohitit from deducting the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceads from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of eperating in the manner intended by management.
instead, an enilty recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing
those items, in profit or ioss.

The adoption of this amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.

= Amendmenis to PAS 37, "Onerous Confracts - Cost of Fulfiling a Contract”

The amendments specily that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate
directly to the contract'. Costs that relate directly to & contract can either be incremental costs
of fulfilling that coniract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfiiing confracts (an example would be the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfifing the
contract).

The adoption of this amendmant is not expected to have any significant impact on the
financial stalements.



Annual Improverments fo PFRSs 2018-2020 Cycie
The Annual Improvements fo PFRSs (2018-2020 cycie) are effective for annual periods
beginning 2022 and are not expecied to have a maierial impact on the Company.

= Amendments o PFRS 1, "Sub: Fary as g Brsi-line Adooie

The amendment permits a subsidiary thal measures (he assels and liahiiiies at the carrving
amounts that would be included in the parent's consolidated financial statements, based on
the parent's date of transiton to PFRSs, if no adjustments were made for consotidation
procedures and for the effecis of the business combination in which the parent acquirad the
subsidiary, to measure cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by its
parent, based on the parent’s dale of transition to PFRSs.

The adoption of this amerdment is not expecied to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.

= Amendmenis to PFRS 9, "Fees in the 10 per cent' Tast for Derecognition of Financial
Liabiiling ™

The improvemenis clarily the fees s company Includes when assessing whether the terms of
a new or modiied financial iabfily are substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liabaily,

The adeption of this amendment is not expecied to have any significant impact on the
financial stalemenis.

* Amendmernts to PFRS 18, "Lease fncenlfives™”

The amendment removes reimbursement relating to leasehold improvemenis. PFRS 16 does
not contain expiicit guidance on how to account for leasehold improvements made by the
lessee or when reimbursemenis made by the lessor in respect of those leasehold
improvements can be regarded as lease incentives. Thus, created some confusion on how a
lessee should account for such reimbursement by stating that the lessee should apply the
appropriate standard and should not account for the reimbursement as a lease incentive. The
standard had not cleary expiained the conclusion as to whether the reimbursement would
meet the definition of a lease incantive in PFRS 16.

The adoption of this amerdment is not expectad to have any significant impact on the
financial statemenis,

= Amendmenis to PAS 41, "Tavaiian in Fair Value Measuremaniz”
The amendment removes the reguirement for enlilies to exchide taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair vaiue of a2 biglogical asset using a present value technigue. This will ensure

consistenicy with the requirements in PFRS 13.

The adoption of this amendment is not expecied to have any significant impact on the
financial statemerts,



New Accounting Standards, Amendments to Existing Standards and interpretalions
Effeciive Subseguent to December 31, 2022

The siandards, amendments znd interpretations which have been issued but not yet effective as
at December 31, 2022 are disclossd below. Except as otherwise indicated, the Company does
not expect the adoption of the applicable new and amended PFRS to have a significant impact
on the financial position or performance.

Effeciive beginning on or affer Jarwary 1, 2023

The amendmenis aim o promoiz consistancy In applying the requiremanis by helping
companies deiermine whether, in the siaiement of financial position, debt and other liabilities
with an unceriain setiiement date shouid be classified as current (due or poientially due to be
settled within one year) or non-current.

The adoption of this amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.

* Amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Practice Statement 2, "Disciosure Inftiative — Accourring
Polfcies"

The amendmenis to PAS 1 require companies to disclose their material accounting palicy
information rather than their significant accounting policies. The amendmenis to PFRS
Practice Sfatement 2 provide guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to
acoounting policy disciosures,

The adoption of this amendment is not expecled to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.

v Amendmenis to PAS 8, "Definiion of Accouniing Estimales”

The amendments clarify how companiss should distinguish changes in accounting policies
from changes in accounting estimates. That distinction is important because changes in
accounting estimates are applied prospactively only to future fransactions and other future
events, but changes in accounting policies are generally also applied ratrospeclively to past
transactions and other past events.

The adoplion of this amendment is nol expecled to have any significant impact on the
financlal statements.

« Amendmenis to PAS 12, "Deferred Tax relsied {o Assefs and Lishififies from a Single
Transaction®

The amendmeris require companies to recognize deferred tax on pariicular transactions that,
on initial recognition, give rise fo equal amounts of faxable and deductible temporary
differences. The proposed amendmants will typically apply to fransactions such as leases for
the lessee and decomimissioning obligafions.

The adoption of this amendment is not expecied fo have any significant impact on the
financial statements.
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Effective beginring on or after January 1, 2024

* Amendments to PAS 1, "Proeentfation of Financial Stalements — Noncurrent Liabililias with
Covanants"

The amendments clanify how conditions with which an entity must comply within twelve
manths after the reporting date affect the classification of a lizbilty. The amendments modify
the requirements introduced by PAS 1, Frasentation of Financial Statements — Classificafion
of Liabilities as Current or Noncurrent, on how an entity classifies debt and other financial
liabilities as current or noncurrent in particular circumstances. Only covenants with which an
entily is required to comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification of a liability
as curremt or noncurrent. In addition, an enifly has 1o disclose information In the notes that
enables users of financial statements to understand the risk that noncurrent liabiiities with
covenants could become repayable within twelve months.,

The adoption of this amendment is not expected fo have any significant impact on the
financial stalements.

= Amendments to PAS 18, "Leases — Loase Lishililv in a Sale and L easeback®

The amendments specify how a sellerlessee should apply the subsequent measurement
requiraments in PFRS 16 fo the lesse liability that arises in the sale and leaseback
transaction. The amendments require a seller-lessee to subsequently measure lease liabilities
arising from a leaseback in 2 way that it does not recognize any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. The new requirements do not prevent 2 selier-lezsee
from recognizing in profit or loss relating to the partial or full termination of a leasa. The
amendments also do not prescribe specific measurement requirements for lease liabiiities
arising from a leaseback.

The adoption of this amendment Is not expected to have any significant impact on the
financial statemenis.

Eifective beginning on or affsr January 1, 2025
* PFRS 17, "Insurance Conir

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standaerd for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will
replace PFRS 4, “Insurance Coniracts”™. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to
all types of insurance confracts (ie., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-nsurance),
regardless of the type of eniiies that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and
financial instrumerits with disrretionary participation featurss. A foew scope excoptions will

apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for Insurance contracts
that is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4,

which are largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies. PFRS 17
provides a comprehensive model for insurance conlracts, covering all relevant accountng

aspects. The core of PFRS 17 Is the general model, supplemented by:

* A specific adopiion for confracts with direct participation features (the variable fee
approach)
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« A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration
contracts.

+ Amendmenls to PFRS 17, "lnsurance Conlracts™
The amendments, which respond to feedback from stakehoiders, are designed to:

= Reduce costs by simplifying some reguirements in the Standard,

* WMake financial performance easler to explain, and

« Ease transition by defering the affective date of the Standard to 2023 and by providing
additional relief to reduce the effort required when applying PFRS 17 for the first time.

The amendmenis are not applicable fo the Comipany since if does not have activities that are
predominantly connectad with insurance or issue insurance contracts.

* Amendment to PFRS 17, "Inilial Application of PFRS 17 and PFRS § — Comparative
Information®

The amendment is 8 transiicn opiion relating to comparative information about financial
asseis presented on initial application of IFRS 17. The amendment is aimed at helping
enlilies fo avoid temporary accounting mismaiches between financial assets and insurance
contraci Fabiitles, and therefore improve the usefulness of comparative information for users
of finanoial atatermnenis.

The adoption of this amendment Is not expecied to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.

O December 15, 2021, the FREC amended the mandslony enescive dale of FRRE 17 fom Janwary 1, 2022 fo
January 1, 2025, Thiz is coss’zlant wilt Giroolar Letler Ne. 2020-62 fszusd by e Insurance Comnvzczian wiich
deferrad the inplamenialion of IFRS 17 by bwo (2] years affer s effective dele a5 decided by the 1ASA,

Defarred Effoctinily

= Amendmenis to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, "Sale or Contribution of Azzafs batwsan an Investor
and its Associzle or Joinf Venfure"

The amendmenis address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss
of control of a subsidiary that is said or contribuled to an associate or joint venture. The
amendmenis clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or
Jjoint venture invalves a business as defined in PFRS 3, "Business Combinafions™. Any gain or
loss resuiting from the sale or confribution of assets that does net constitute a business,
however, is recognized oniy 1o the extent of unrelated investors’ Inieresis in the associaie or
joint veniure,

On January 13, 2016, the FRBC deferred the original effeclive date of January 1, 2016 of the
said amendmants until the Intermational Accounting Standards Board (IASB} completes its

broader review of the research project on eguily accounfing that may result in the
simplification of accounting for such transsctions and of other aspects of accounting for

associales and joint vantures.

These amendmenis may apply to fulure ransaciions of the Company.



* Deferment of Implemeniation of International Financial Reporting interpretations Commiitee
{IFRICY Agenda Decision on Over Time Transfer of Constructed Goods (PAS 23, "Borowing
Cost") for the Real Estate industry

in March 2019, IFRIC published an Agenda Decision on whether borrowing costs can be
capitzlized on real estate inveniones that are under construction and for which the reiated
revenue isfwill be recognized over time under par. 35 {c) of PFRS 15. IFRIC conclyded that
borrowing Costs cannot De capdalized for such real estate inventories as they do not meet the
deiinition of a gualifying asset under PAS 23 considering that these inventories are ready for
thelr inlended ss's in their current cengition.

On February 21, 2020, the Phitppine SEC izsued MC No. 4, Series of 2020, providing relief to
the Real Estate Industry by deferring the mandatory impiementation of the above IFRIC
Agenda Decision umiil December 31, 2020, Effective January 2021, the Real Estate Industry
wiil adopt the IFRIC agenda decision and any subseguent amendments thersto
retrospectvely or as the SEC will later prescribe. A real estale company may oot not to avail
of the deferral and instead comply in full with the requiremenis of the IFRIC agenda decision.

The adoption of this amendment iz not expectsd to have any significant impact on the
financial statements since the Company is not in a real estate industry.

No Mzrdalory Effective Dsie

* PFRS 9, "Financial fnsfrumants (Hedge Accounting and Amendments to PFRS 8, PFRS 7
and PAS 39)"

The amendments requirs the inclusion of general hedge accounting model in the notes
disclosure to the financial stztements. The amendments aliow early adoption of the
requirement fo present fair value changss due to own credit on liahilities designated as at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL) to be presentad in the ather comprehensive income.

These amendrnenis are not applicable to the Company and expecied not to have an impact
on the financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Company presenis asseis and lisbfiiies in the statements of financial position based on
current or noncurtent classification. An asset is current i

= Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

* Expecled to be realized within iwelve (12) months afier the reporting period; or

= Cash or cash equivalent uniless restricted from being exchanged or used to seitle a liabiiity for
at least 12 monihs after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as noncurrent.
A liability is current when:
= |tis expecizd to be seitled in the normal operating cycle;

= W is heid primarily for the purpose of trading;
= ltis due o be seilled within 12 months after the reporting period; or
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« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at lesst twelve months
after the reporting period.

Al ciher liabiities are classitiad as noncurrent.

Deterrad income tox assels and lizbimies, I any, are classified as noncurrent assets and
liabinties.

Fair Walue Measurement
Fair vajue is the price that would be receive to sell an asset or paid to transfer a fiability in an
orderly transaction bstween market paricipanis al the measurement dale. The fair valie
measurement is based on the presumption that the ransaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liahility iakes place either:

+ In the princizal market for the asset or liability, or
= In the absence of a principal market, in the moast acvantageous market for the assel or

lizbility.
The principal or the most advantagecus market must be accassible to the Cempany.

The fair value of an assst or a liabiily is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when piicing the asset or liahity, assuming that market particinants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of 2 nonfinancial asset takes inio account a markel parbicipant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the assat in its highest and best use or by selling it o
ancther market participant that would use the assetin is highest and best use,

The Company uses vaiuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumnstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inpits and minimizing the use of uncbservable inputs.

All assets and fiabiliies for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial stalemenis

are categorized within the fair value nierarchy, describad as fotows, based on the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

s Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadivsted) in active markets for identical assets or liabities

» Level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowast level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement iz direcily or indirecty observabis

» Level 3 - Unobservabie inputs for the asset or liability

For assels and lizbiities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether lransfers have occurred belween Levels in tha hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization {bassd on the lowest level inpul that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whoie) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair vaiue disciosures, the Company has determinad classes of assels and
liabiliies on ihe basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assets or liahilnles and the
level of the fair vaiue hierarchy.

Finansial Instiuments
Financial instrurent is any coriract that gives rise fo a financial asset of ane entity or a financizl
liability or equity instrument of anothar eniily.




Date of Recognition

The Company recaghizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statements of financial
position when it becomes a party {0 the contrachual provisions of a financial instrument. In the
case of a regular way purchsse or sale of financial assets, recognilion and derecognition, as
applicable, is done using sefament date accounting.

"Day 1" Difference
Where the transaction in a non-aciva market is different from the fair value of other ocbservable

variabies include only dats from cbservablz market, the Company recognizes the difference
between the tansaclion price and fair value (2 “Day 17 difference)} in profit or loss. In cases
where there is no ohservable data on inception, the Company deems the fransaction price as the
best estimate of fair value and recognizes “Day 1" difference in profit or loss when the inputs
become ohservabie or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the "Day 17 difference.

Einancial Assets

Inilial Recognition

Financial asseis are recognized inially at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration
given. The initial measurement of financial asseis, except for those designated at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL), includes fransaction cost

Classification

The Company ciassifigs ils financial 2538is at initial recogniion under the following categories:
(a) financial assets at amortized cost, {(b) financial asseis at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCH) and { ¢} financial assets at FYPL. The classification of a8
financial asset at initial recognition largely depends on the Cempany's business model for
managing the asset and its contractisal cash flow charactenisiics.

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Financial assets are measured al amortized cost if both of the feliowing conditans are met:

» The financial asset is held within a business modal whose objeciive is to hold financial asseis
in order 1o collect contraciual cash fiows; and

+ The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows thal
are solely payments of principal and intarest on the principal amount oulstanding.

After initial recognition, financial assels at amortized cost are subseqguenily measured at
amortized cost using the effeciive interest method, less any sllowance for impairment
Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rete, Financial assets at amertized cost are
nciuded under current assets if realizabilily or cofteciabiiily is within 12 months after the reporting
perind. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

The Company's cash is classified under this calegory (see Note 5).
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Debt Instrumerts at FVYOCI
For debt instruments that are not designated at FVPL under the fair value option, the financial

assels are measurad at FVOC! if both of the foliowing condilions are met:

+ The financial asset is heid vwithin 2 business model whose objeciive is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash ficws and sefiing the financizl assels, and

¢ The contractual terms of the financial asseis give rise, on specified dates, 10 cash flows that
are solely payments of princinal and inderest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, interest income (calcuialed using the effective intzrest rale method),
foreign currency gains or losses and impairment gains of lnases of debt instrumenis measured at
FVOCI are recogrnized directly in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in OC| are classified from equily 1o pront or loss
as a reciassification adjustment.

As at December 31, 2022 ard 2021, the Company does not have debt insfruments at FVOCE

Equity Instrurments at FVOC]

For equity instruments that are not held for trading, the Comparty may imevocably designate, at
initial recognition, a financial asset to be measured at FVOCI when it meeis the definition of
equity instrument under PAS 32, "Financial Instrumenis: Fresenlalian” This option is available
and made on an insirument by instrumeant basis.

Dividends from equily Instruments held al FVOCI are recognized in profit or loss when the right
fo receive payment is esiablished, uniess the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investmant. All other gains or losses from equity instrumenis are recognized in OCI
and presented in the equity section of the statements of financial position, These fair value
changes are recognized in equily and are not reciaseifisd to profit or loss in subseguent periods,
instead, these are transferred direcily to retained earnings.

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company does not have eguily instruments at EVOCH.

Financial Assels at FVPL

Fimancial assets that do not meet the crifera for being measured at amortized cost or FVOCI are
classified under this category. Specifically, financial assets at FVPL include financial assels that
are (a) held for frading, (b) designated upon inilial recogritan at FVPL, or [ c} mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial asseis are classiied as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selfing or repurchasing in the near term. Derivaiives, inciuding
separated embedded derivaiives, are aiso classified as heid for trading unless they are
designaied as effective hedging instruments

This category inciudes debt instruments whose cash ficws, based on the assessment at initial
recognition of the asseis, are not “solely for payment of principal and irterest”, and which are not
heid within a business model whose objeciive is either to collect contractual cash ficws or to both

cowtect confraciual cash flows and sell.

This categary also includes equity instruments which the Company had not irevacably elected to
classify at FVOCI at initial recogrition.

After iritial recognition, financizl assets at FVPL are subseguently measured at fair value, Gains
or losses arising from the fair valuation of financial asseis at FVPL are recognized n profit or
loss.
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As at Decamber 31, 2022 and 2021, the Compary has no financial asseis at FVPL.

Reclassification

The Company reclassifies its financial asseis when, and oniy when, it changes ils business
model for managing thase financial assets. The reclassification is applied prospectively from the
first day of the first reporting perisd foiowing the change in the business model (reciassification
daie).

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assels at amorhzed cost category to financial
asseis at FVPL, any gain or loss arising from the difference betwean the previous amartized cost
of the financial asset and fair value is recognized in profit or loss.

For a financial asset reclassified oul of the finan-ial asseis at amortized cost category to financial
assets at FVOCI, any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous amortized cost
of the financial asset and fair value is recognized in OCH,

Eor a financial assel reclassificd out of the financial assets at FVPL calegory fo financiat assets
at amortized cost, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying
amount,

For a finansial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to financial assets
at amortized cost, any gain or loss praviously recognized in OCl, and any difference beiween the
new amortized cost and maturity amount, are amortized fo profit or logs over the remaining [ife of
the investment using the effective interest method. I the financial assel is subsequenty
impeired, any gain or loss that has been recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss.

In the case of a financial asset that does not have a fixed maturity, the gain or loss shall be
racognized in profit or loss when the financial asset is sold or disposed. If the financial asset is
subsequently impaired, any previous gain or loss that has been recognized in OCl is reciassified
from equity to proi or loss.

For a financial asset rectassifiad out of the financial asseis at FVYPL category to financial assels
at FVOCI, its fair value at lhe reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount.
Meanwhile, for a financisl assei reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to
financial assets at FVPL, the curufative gein or loss previously recagnized in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassificstion adjustment at the rectassification date.

Impairment of Financial Assets at Amortized Cost and FVOCI

The Comparny recognizes an allowance for ECL for all debt instruments not held at FVPL. ECL
is based on the difference betwsen the contraciual cash flows due in accordance with the
cordract and all the cash fizws that the Company expects to receive, discounied at an
approximakbion to the asset's original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash fiows from the sale of coliateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractoal terms.
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For other debt instrumenis measured at amortized cost and FVOCI, the ECL is based on
the 12-month ECL, which pertains to the portion of lifetime ECLS that result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. However,
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the allowance
will be based on the lifetime ECL. When datermining whether the cradit risk of a financial asseat
has increased significantly since Initial recognition, the Gompany compares the risk of a default
occuming on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default ocourring
on the financial Instrument as at the date of inftial recognition. The Company also considers
reasanable and suppeoriable information, that 1s availkable without undue cost or efifort, that is
indicafive of significant increases in cradit risk since initial recognition,

The Company considers a financial assel in defaull when conlractual paymenis are 30 days
past due unless it is demonstrated that the nonpayment was an administraiive oversight rather
than resulting from financial difficulty of the borrower. However, in certain cases, the Company
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding coniractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Derecognition
A financlal asset (or where applicable, a part of a financlal asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when:

* The right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

* The Company relains the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset, but has
assumed an cbligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-
through™ arrangement; or

* The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the financial asset and
either (a} has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} has neithar
transferred nor retained substaniially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has
fransferrad control of the asset.

When the Company has fransterred its right fc receive cash flows from a financial assat or has
ertered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither fransferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor fransferred control of the
financial asset, the financial asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing
involvement in the financial asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred financial asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the financlal asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company couid be

requirad to repay.
Financial Liabiiiliss

Initial Meazurament

Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration
received. In case of financial llabililes at amortized cost, the initial measurement Is net of any
directly attributable transaction costs,

Clagsification and Subsaquent Measuremant
The Gompany classifies (is financial labilities at initial recognition as either financial habilities at
FVPL or financial liabiiies at amortized cost.
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Financial lizbiities at FVPL
Firancial llabilites at FVPL include financial lizbilities held for trading and financial liabiinies

designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL.

Financial liabiites are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Financial liabwies designated updn initial recognition at fair value through proiit or loss are
£

designated at the inftial date of recognition, and orly if the criteria in PFRS 2 are salisfied. The
Company has not designaled any financial lizbilily as al fair value through profil or loss.

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company does nol have financial liabilities at FVPL.

Financial lizksilies af amoriized cost

Financisl liabilities are categorized as financial lizhibties at amortized cost when the subsiance of
the eontractual arrangement resuits in the Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or
anather financial asset to the halder. or to settia the obligstion other than by the exchangs of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial assat Tor a Tiked number of its own equily instrumenis.

Afler inilial recognilion, lhese financial liabiiiies are subseguenlly measured at amortized cost
using the effective interesi method. Amortized cost is caloulated by taking into account any
discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an inlegral part of the effective interest rate.

Included in this category are the Company's trade and other payalies {except government
payables) and loans payable.

Derecognition

A financial liabiity is derecognized when the obligation under the liabiiity is discharged, cancelied
or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender
on substanfially diferent terms, or the terms of an existing liabifily are substanfially modifiad,
such an exchange or modificstion s tresied as 3 derecagnition of the original Eabiity and the
recognition of a new liabiiity, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recagnized
in the statements of comprehansive income.

Fair Value Option

The Company may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial asset or liability that
wolld othenwise have to be measured at amortized cost or FVYOCH to be measured at FVPL if
doing so would eliminate or significantly reduce an accouning mismalch or otherwise resuils in
more refevani information,

Classification of Financial Instrument befveen Liabiity and Equity
A financial instrument is classified as liabiiity if it provides for a contraciual obligation to:

» Deliver cash or ancther financizl asset to another entity;

* Exchange financial assels or financial liabiliies with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Company; or

* Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fived number of cwn equity shares.

If the Company does not have an unconditional right to avoid detivering cash or another financial
azsel o setlle s contraciual obligation, the obligation mests the definition of a financial liability.
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Offsatfing of Financial Azsats and Liahililies

Financial asssts and financial liabiities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement
of flnancial position if. and only if, there Is a currenlly enforceable legal right to offset the
racognized amounts and there is intention to setiie on a net basis, or o realize the asset and
settia the liability simuilaneously. This is not generally the case with master nelting agreements,
and the related assets and lisbiiiles are preseniad gross In the statement of financizl posilion.

Input V.
Input VAT represents value-added tax (VAT) paid to suppliers that can be claimed as credit
against the Company's VAT liabiliiies,

Property and Equipment
Froparty and squipmant, excent land, are camied at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization and accumulated provision for any impairment in valug, if any,

The initial cost of property and eguipment comprizes ils purchase price and other cosls directly
attributable in bringing the asseis to itz working condition and location for its intended use.
Expandilures incurred afler the property have been put inlo operalion, such as repairs and
maintenance, are normally charged to income in the yvear the cosis are incurred. In situations
when it can be dlearly demonsirated that the expenditures have resulied in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected fo be obtained from the use of an item of property and
equipment bayond its originally assessed standard of performance and the cost of such item can
he measured reliably, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost of the said property
and equipment.

Land iz ststed at cost less impairment in value, if any.

Depreciation is computed using the siraight-line method over the estimaied useful lives of the
assets as foliows:

Properly and Equipment No. of years
Container van and vehicles 10
Office and other equipment 5
Furniture and ficiures 10
Medical equipment and fixtures 10

The useful life and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the period and
method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefils from ftems

of proparty.

Construction in progress represenis struciures under consiructions and is stated at cost (include

cost of construction, machinery and eguipment under installation and other related costs).
Construction in progress is not depreciated until such time as the relevant as=atis are complated

and ready for iis intended use.

The carryving values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in the sircurnstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable,

Fully depreciated assefs are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no
further depreciation and amortization are recognized in profit or loss.
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An item of property and eguipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no fulure economic
benetits are expecied from ifs use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecagnition of the
assel (caicviated a5 the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carmying amouni
of the asset) is included in profit and loss in the period the asset is derecognized.

intancibie Asset

Infanigible assel represents cost of software which is measured initially at cost and subsequently
slated al cost less accumu!ztied amoriizalion and impalrment loss, if any.

Cosl of software comprises. (a) lis purchase price, including any import dutles and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting any trade discounts and rebates: and (b) any directly
attributable cost of preparing it for its iniended use.

Subsequent research cosis are expensed ouiright when incurred and recognized as expense in
the stalement of comprehensive inceme. Develcoment costs incurred subsequeniy are
capitalized as part of the software account, only when it is clearly demonstrated that it is an
iniangibie asset in which probable future economic benefils associated with it will ficw to the
Company and it can be measured rolizbly.

Amortization commences once the software is available for use and is compuied on the straight-
line basis over three years. Amorlization ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset iz
classiiied as held for sale and the date that the asset is derecognized. Amortization charge for
each period is recognized as expense in the staternents of comprehensive income. The useful
lite of software is estimated based on the period over which the assel is expectsd to be available
for use. Such estimation is based on a collective assesement of industry practize and
experience with simitar asseis.

The carying value of software is reviewsd for impairment when everis or changes in
cireumstances indicale that the carmying value may not be recoverable.

An item of intangibie asset is derecognized upon disposal or when no fuiure economic benefis
are expectad from Ks use or disposal. Any gain or loss anising on derecognition of the asset
(ealculated as the differenice bstween the nat disposal proceeds and the carmying amount of the
asset) is included in the stalement of comprehensive income in the year the asset is
derecognized,

The assets residual values, amortization period and amorfization methods are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

Depogii

Deposit represents refundatie deposits in Zambonga City Electric Cooperalive Inc. are stated at
cost less aliowance for impairment loss, if any, unless it gives rise to a present right to receive
cash or ancther financial as=et in which these are stated at amortized cost.
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Impatment of Nonfinancial Assets
Property and equipment, input VAT, intangible asset and deposit are reviewed for impairment

whenever evenis or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable. f any such indication exists and where the camying amount of an asset
excesds its resoverable amount, the asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) Is wrilten down to its
recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable amount Is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
cost to sell and value in use. The fair value less cost to sell is the amount obialnable from the

sale of an asset in an arm'slength transackion less the costs of disposal while value in use is the
present value of estimated future cash flows expected fo arise from the continuing use of an

asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For an asset that does not generate
largely independent cash infiows, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which
the asset belongs. VWhere the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset = considered impaired and is writen down o ts recoverable amount In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-fax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of

money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining falr value less cost o sell, an
appropriate valuation model] is used. These calculations are comoborated by valuation muitiples

or oiher fair velue indicators. Impeirment losses are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Recovery of impairment loss recognized in prior yvears is recorded on nonfinancksl asset when
there is an indication that the impairment loss recognized for the asset no longer exists or has
decrsased. The recovery is recorded in the sialement of comprehensive income. However, the
incraased camying amount of an asset due to a recovery of an impairment lozs is recognized to
the extent that it does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (nef of
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recagnized for that asset in prior years.

Equity

Share Capital
Share capital is recognized as issued when the share is paid for or subscribed under a binding
subscription agreement and Is measured at par value.

The share capital is class#ied into founders’ share, common share and preferred share.

Deficit
Deficit includes all cument and prior perfod resulls as disclosed in the staternent of
comprehensive income.

Revenus Recognition

Revenue from confract with customers is recognized when the performance obligation in the
contract has been satisfied, either at a point in time or over time. Revenue is recognized over
time if one of tha following crileria is met: {a) the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefils as the Company performs its obligations; {b) the Company's performance
creates or enhances an asset that the cusiomer controls as the asset is oreated or enhanced; or

{c} the Compary's perfermance doss not creats an asset with an alternative use to the Company
and the Company has an enfarceable right to payment for perdformance completed to date.
Clherwise, revenue is recognized at a point in time.

The Company also assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acling as a principal
or as @n agent.
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Intarest ncome
Interest income s recognized as the interesi accrues feking nto account the eifective wieid on

the asset,

Other Incorze
Income from other sources is recognized when earned during the period.

Cost and Expenses
Costs and expenses are recognized in the siatemant of comiprehensive income upon ulilization
of the service or goods or at the daie these are incurred or received.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cosls are generally expensed as incurred. Interest and other finance cosis incurred
during the construction perlod on borrowings uwsed to finance properly deveiopment are
capilatized to the approprizie assal accounts,

The capitalization of borreaing costs commences when the activiiies o prepare the asset are in
progress and expendiures and bormowing cosls are being incurred. The capitatization of these
borrewing costs cesses when subsiantially all activities necessary to prepare the asset for sale or
its injended use are complete. If the carrying amount of the assel exceads ils recoverable
amouni, an impairment loss s recarded.

Emplogs Benatits

Short-ferm Bensfis

Short-term employee benefits are those benefits expedtad to be setiied wholly before 12 months
after the end of the annual reporting period during which employee services are rendered, but do
not include lerminailon benetits. Short-term benefiis given by the Company lo its empicyees
include salaries and wages, social security, heaith insurance and housing contributions, short-
term compensated absences, honuses and other non-moneiary benefils.

Leases
The Company assesses wheiner the conlract is, or coniains, a lease. To assess whether a

confract convays the right to control the use of an ideniified asset for a period of time, the
Company assesses whether, throughout the period of use, it has the follcwing:

» the condract invalves an ideniifed asseot — this may be specified explicilly or implicitly, and
shoutd be physically distingt or represent substantially all of the capaciy of a physicaily distinet
assetl. i the suppier has a subsianiive substitulion right, then the asset is not idenfified;

= the Company has the right to obfain subsianiaily all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset throughaut the period of use; and

= the Company has the right fo direct the use of the asset. The Company when it has the
decizion-mating rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset
is used. The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset of eithern
a. the Company has the right to operate the asset; or
b. the Company designed the assat in 2 way that predetermines how and for what purpase it

will be used.
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Short-term Leases and Leases of Low-Value Assels

The Company applhes the shori-term lease recognition exemption to its shorl-term ieases of
office space {ie., those leases thal have a lease term of 12 morths or less from the
commencement date and do not conlain a purchase option). Lease paymenis on short-term
leases and leases of low-valie aesels are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease ferm.

Related Pariies
Parties were considered to be relaled if one parly has the abiity, directly or indireciiy, 1o conirol
the other parly or exercises significant infiuence over the other party in making financial and

control or common significant influence. Re'sled parties may be individuals or corporate enlities.

Transaciions belwsen related parties are based on terms sivilar to those offered to non-related
parties.

Income Taxes

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and Habibiles for the cumrent and prior years are measured at the
amourt expecied o be recovered from or paid fo the taxation authoriiies. The fax rates and {ax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or subslaniively enacled at the
reporting period.

Current income tax reiafing o items recognized ditecty in equity is recognized in equity and not
in the profit or loss.

Deferred fncome Tox

Deferred income tax is provided using the liabiily melhod on temporary differences at the
reporting period betveen the tax bases of assels and lisbities and their carrying amounts for
financial reparting purpases.

Deferred tax liabiivies are recognized for alf taxable teimporary differences except: (1) when the
deferred tax liabiily arises from the inilial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liabiity in a
transaciion that is not 2 bisinass combination and, at the time of the transaction, afecis neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or lozs: and (2) in respect of taxable temporary differences
azsociated with invesiments in suhsidiaries, aseociales and interests in joint ventures, where the
timing of the reversal of the lemporary dilferences can be condrolled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not revarse in 1he foreseaabie future.

Deferred tax asseis are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the camyorward
benefits of urused tax credils from excess minimuem corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular
corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused net operating loss camy-over (NOLCO) to the extent
that it is probabie that taxable profit will be avaiable apainst which the deductible temporary
differences and the camyiorward benefit of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
uliiized except: (1) when the deiemed income tax asset relating to the deduciibie i@mporary
difference arises from the imitizl recognition of an asset or liablity in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the fransaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and (2} in respect of deductible temporary differences associated wilh
invesimenis in subsidiaries, assodiates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
recognized orly to the extent thai it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable fulure and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be ulilized.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewad at each reporting period and reduced to
the exlent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
parl of the deferred tax assets to be ulilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probabls that future
taxable profit will allow the defarred 1ax asset 1o be recovered.

Deferred tax assels and liabiities are measured at the tax rates that are sxpected to apply in the
period when the asset is reafized or the lisbiily is setiled, based on tax raies {and tax laws] that
have been enacted or substaniively enactad at the reporting period.

Deferred income tay relating to iiems recognized oulside profit or loss is recognized outside profit
or loss. Deferred tax flems are recognized in correlation to the underdying transaction either in
OC! or directly in equily.

Deferred tax asseis and deferred income tax lishiilies are ofiset, if a legally enforceable right
exists io offset current income tax assels against current income tax liabdites and the deferred
noome taxas relate to the same taxabie antily and the same taxabon authonty.

Provigions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has present obiinations, legal or constructive, as a
result of past evenis, whan it is probahble that an ouiflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required io seitle the obligation and a refiable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Where the Company expecis some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimhursement is vinually cerain. The expense relating lo any provizion is presented in the
statement of comprehensive income, net of any reimbursements. if the effect of the time value of
money is malerial, provisions are discounted using a current pre-iax rate that reflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liabiily. Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to passage of ime is recognized as inlerest expense.

Cantingencizs

Contingent liabiiisias are nat recognized in the financial statemenis. These are disclosed uniess
the possibiity of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remcte. Contingent
assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to financial
statements when an infiow of economic benefils 15 probabie,

Loss Per Share

Basic loss per share is calculzied by dividing the net loss (less preferred dividends net of lax, if
any) for the year aributsble to commen shareholders by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the year, with reiroactive adjustment for any stock dividends
or siock sphits dectared during the vear.

Diluted loss per share is compuled by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of
comimon slocks oulstanding during the year, after giving retroactive effect for any stock
dividends, stock splils or reverse stock splits during the year, and adjusted for the effect of
dilutive options.

Events After the Reporting Period

Post year-end evenls that provide additicnal infarmation about the Company's financial position
at the end of the reporting period {adjusting evenis) are refiactad in the financial statemenis. Post
year-end evenis ithat are not adivsting events are disciosed in the noies to financial statements
when material.
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3. Signiticant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparaiion of the financial siatomeris in conformity with PFRS requires management to
make judgments and estimates that affect the reporied amounts of revenues, exXpenses, assels
ang lisbilities and disclosure of contingent ligbiilies al the reporting date. The uncerizinbies
inherent in these judgments and estimatas could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the assels or lizhilitias affectad in future years.

Judgraents

In the process of applying the Company's accounting polcies, management has made the
foligaing judgments, apart from those irvolving estimations, which have the miost significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Busingss Model Assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on fhe restlts of the SPP| and the
business mode! test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how
groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve 2 pariicular business ohiective. This
assessment includes judgment reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of
the assels is evalusted and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of
the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated.
Momitoring is part of the Company's coninuous assessment of whether the business model for
which the remairing financial assets are held confinues to be approprigte and if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a progpeciive change lo
the classification of those asseis.

Signifcant Incicase of Credit Risk

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial lishiliias recorded on the siatements of
financial posifion cannot be derived from active markeis, they are determined using internal
valuation technigues using generally accepied market valuziion modeis. The input to these
models is taken from observable markets where possitle, Dut where this is not feasible,
eslimales are used in estabiishing fair values. These estimates may include considerations of
liguidity, volabinty and corretation.

Classification of Firancial insiumenms

The Gomparny classifies its financial asseis and financial tizhiiitics in the Tollowing measurement
categories: i) those to be measured subseguently at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income or through profit or less) and i) those 1o be reasured at amortized cost.
The classification of fnanciai asseis depends on the business model for managing the financial
assets and the cantracial fermis of the cash ficws. Financial liabililies are classified as those to
be measured at amortized cost unless they are designated as those 10 be measurad
subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (irrevocable election at the time of recogrition).
For asseis and liabiiles measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in profd or
lpss o other comprehensive iIncome.

The Company recizssifies financial assets when and only when ils business model for managing
those aseets changes. Financial liabiuiies are not reclassiied,

Defermination Whether an Arrangement Coniaing a Lease

The Company uses its judgment in determining whether an arangemeni condains a lease, based
on the substance of the arrangement at inception date and makes assessment whether the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific assei or assels, the arrangement conveys a
right to use the asset and the amangement iransfers substantiaity all the risks and rewards
incidental to awnership to the Company.



-31-

The detalls of these lease agreements are disclosed in Nata 11,

Determining the Lease Term of Confracts wilh Renswal and Termination Octions ~ Company as
Lesses

The Company determines the lease ierm as the noncancellabia term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or
any pencds covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exarcised,

The Company has lease coniract that incledes extension and termination opiions. The Company
appiies judgment in evafuating whether it s reasonably certain whether or not to exercize the
option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all refevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination, After the commencement
date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there iz a significant event or change in
circumestances that is within s control and affecis ils ability to exercise or not to exercize the
opfion to renew or fo terminate {e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customization to the leased asset).

The Company did not inchide the renewal period as part of the lease term for lease of its
temporary office space even though the Company iypically exercises its option to renew this
lease because the Company does not have erforceable right to extend the lease beyond the
noncanceiiable period.

Where the fair values of finanial assets and financial liabsities recorded on the statemant of
financial position cannot be derived from active markels, they are determined using valuation
techniques including the discounted cash fiows modal. The inputs to this model are taken from
cbservable markels wiiere possible, but where this is not feasibie, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values. The judgments incliude considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volality. Changes in assumplions aboul these faciors could affect
the reporfed fair value of financial instruments.,

Estimat Assumptions

The key estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at reporling date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carmying amounis of asseis and liabiiiies recognized in the financial statements within the nexdt
financial year are discussed as folicws:

Assessment for ECL an Ofher Financial Asseis al Amoriized Cost

The Company determines the siicwance for ECL using general approach based on the
probability-weighted estimate of the present value of all cash shorifalls over the expeciad life of
financial assets at amortized cost. ECL is provided for credit losses that result from possible
default events within the next 12 months unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition in which case ECL is provided based on lifetime ECL.

The Company also considers financial assets that are more than 30 days past due to be the
latest point at which lifetime ECL should be recognized unless it can demonsirale that this does
not represent a signiticant risk in cradit risk such as when non-payment was an administrative
oversight rather than resuiting from financial difficulty of the borrower,
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\When determining if there has been a significant increase In credit risk, the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort and that is
relevant for the particular financial instrument being assessed such as, but not limited to, the
following Tactors:

= Actual or expected exfernal and internal credit rating downgrade;
* Existing or forecasted adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions; and
= Actual or expected significant adverse changes in the operating results of the borrower.

The Company has assessaed that the ECL on other financial assets at amorlized cost is not
material because the transactions with respedt to these financial assets wera ertared into by the
Company only with reputable banks and companies with geod credit standing and refatively low
risk of defauits. Accordingly, no provision for ECL on other finzncial assets at amortized cozt was
recognized in 2022 and 2021, The carrying amounis of olher financial assets at amortized cost is
as follows:

2022 2021

Cash in banks P50,836,040 P1 3!2?1 [1__12[1

Assegsment for Impairment of Nonfinancial Assels

The Company assesses impalrment on noniinancial asssets whenever evenis or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrving amount of the asseis or group of asseis may not be
recoverable. The relevant Taciors that the Company considers in deciding whether to perform an
esset impairment review inciude, among others, the following:

+ Significant underperformance of a busingss in refation to expectations;
= Significant negative industry or ecenomic trends; and
« Significant changes or planned changes In the use of the assets.

Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds Hs recoverable amount, an impairment loss
Ia recognized. Recoverable amounts are eslimatled for individual assels or, it is not possible, for
the CGU fo which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount of the assst is the greater of the fair value less cost of disposal or value
in uee. The fair valua less cost of disposal is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in
an arm's-length transaction. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tay discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Mo impairment loss on nonfinancial assels was recognized for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021. The carrving amounts of nonfinancial assets are as follows:

2022 2021
Input tax PBO,125,602 PE3,835,838
Property and equipment 885,044,823 648,214,815
Intangible asset 155,224 173,661
Deposit 4,609,112

PO70,734,661 P712.428,315
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Estimating Usefl Lives of Property and Eguicment, Except Land

The estmated useful lives used as beses for deprecisiing the Company's property and
equinment, exciuding land, were determined on the besis of management's assessment of the
period within which the benefits of these asset items are expecled Io be resfzed taking into
account actual historical information on the use of such assets,

The carrying amount of property and equipment, except land, amounted to P853,432,119 and
P815,802,111 as at December 31, 2022 aiwd 2021, respeciively (see Note &).

Estimated Usefil Life of Intansitie Assst

The useful lie of intangible assels is assessed at the individual asset level as having eilher a
finite or indefinite life. Intangitie assets are regarded to have an indefinite useful life when, based
on anaiyzis of all of the relevant facicrs, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the
assel is expected to generais net cash inficws for the Company. The useful life of tangible asset
with definite life is estimaled based on the perind over which the asset is expected to be avallable
for use. Such eslimation is based on a collectve assessment of industry practice and
experience wilh similar assets.

Amortization of intangibie asset is computed on the straight-line basis over the useful life of ten
{10) years. The estimated useful life and amartization method are reviewed from time to time to
ensure that these are consistent with the exgecied economic benelils of the intangible asset.

The carrying values of intagihle asset amounted to P155,224 and P173,661 as at December 31,
2022 and 2021, respeciively (see Nota 7).

Recognition of Deferred Tax Asseis

The Company reviews the carrying amounis of deferred tax assets at each reporting date and
reduces deferred tax 2ssets to the axtent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be avaliable to alicw all or part of the deferred tax assels 1o be ublized.

The management believes that the Company will not be able to realize the NOLCO in the future,
The Company provided full valuation allowancs on its NOLCO, thus, no defarred tax asset was
set up in 2022 and 2021,

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Capital Management

Financial Risk Management Obisciives and Poticies

The main purpose of the Company's financial instruments is to fund its operations. The
Company's principal financial instruments arising from operalions consist of cash, trade and
other payables (excluding government iabiliies) and leans payable. The main risks from the use
of financial instrumenis are credit and liquidity risk.

The Company does not have foreign currency risk because the Company has no monetary
assels and liabiiliss denominated in foreign currency for the years ended December 31, 2022

and 2021.

The Cempany's Board of Directors reviews and approves the poficiss for managing each of
these risks and these are summarized below:
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Credit Risk

The Company's exposure to credit risk arises from the failure on the part of its counterparty in
fulliling its financial commiiments fo the Company under the prevailing confractual lerms.
Financial insiruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist primarily of other
financial asseis at amortized cost,

The carrying amounts of financial assels at amortized costs represent its maximum credit
EXposuUre.

Other Finarncial Assets af Amortized Cost

The Company's other financial azseis at amoriized cost is cash in banks. The Company limiis its
exposure to credit risk by invasting its cash only with banks that have good credit standing and
reputation in the local and intarnational banking industry. These instrumenis are graded in the iop
category by an accepiable credit rating agency and, therefore, are considered to be low credit
rizk invasimenis.

It is the Company's poicy to measure ECL on the above instrumenis on a2 12-month basis.
Howewver, when thers has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allwance will be based on the lifetime ECL.

When determining If there has been a significant increase in credi risk, the Company considers
reasonable and supporiabie information that is available without undue cost or efforl and that is
relevant for the particular financial instrument being assessed such as, but not limited o, the
foilowing factors;

¢ Actual ar expecied external and intermal credit rating downgrade;
= Existing or forecasted adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions; and
¢ Actual or expected significant adverse changes in the operaiing reswits of the borrower.

The Company also considers financizl assets that are more than 30 days past due lo be the
latest point at which fifefime ECL should be recogrized uniess it can demenstraie that this does
not represent significent crecit risk such as when non-payment arses from administrative
oversight rather than resuiling from financial difficutty of the borrower,

The table beicw presents the summary of the Company’s exposure to crec’ risk and shows the
credit qualily of the assels by indicaling whether the assels are subjected to 12-month ECL or
lifeiime ECL., Assets that are credit-impaired are separately presented.

Decembar 31, 2522
Financial assot at amortized cost
Lifeiime ECL

— nat credit Lifetima ECL
12Z-meonth ECL impeived - credit impalred Tetel
Cash in banks P50,836,040 P- P P30,835,010

Decomber 31, 2621

Lifetima ECL
= M credit Lit=tima ECL
t2-miouin ECL impgired - aeedit impetsa Tetal

Cashin banks P13,271,420 P— P— P13,271,420




e R

Ligyuiciity Risk
In the management of liquidily, the Cormpany monitors and maintains a level of cash deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Company's operations and mitigate the effects of

fluctiations in cash fiows.

To meet the Company's shori-lenm obigations and funding for the construction of its building and
purchase of medical equipment and furnitures, the Company will call for payment of the
subscription receivable from the stockholders. Also, the Company secured from Development
Bank of the Philippines a credit fine faciity in 2018 and 2021 as one of it sourcas in funding the
construction of hospital building and purchase of medical equinment and fumniture.

The table below summarizes the maturily profie of the Company’s financial assets and liabilites
as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 based on coniractual and undiscounied payments.

As at December 31, 2022

Wik 1 hora than S
On Davand year 110 S vears YEars Total
Financial Fabifiiies:
Accounts payahie P— 65,608,112 P— P— PBS5,005, 112
Accrued expense — 1,256,748 - - 1,256,748
Loans payabla = 65,116,355 342,442,514 320,741,131 737,309,000
P P131,379,215 P342 442 514 P329, 741,131 P&d3, 562,860
Financial agsets: B
Cash P31,004,020 P- P= P- P51,004,030
Ag at December 31, 2021
Wl 1 #ore than 5
On Demand yrar 1o 5 years VESTS Total
Firar oo fabl o
ACCounis poyrble P PO4.234.704 P- P PE4.254, 754
Loans payatie - — 280004 012 F45,475 603 BOT S00 D00
P— FE4.254, Tod P255,004.012 P348.423.030 PE7 1754764
Financial azozis:
Cazh P13 325,211 2 P P= P13,323.211

Fair Values of Financial Instrumenis

The historical cost carrying amourts of the Company's financial aeseis and financial liabiiites are
all subject to normal credit terms, and are shor-term in nature, and approximate their fair values.

Detallz are a= followes:

2022 2021 _
Financial assefs:
Cash P51,004 080 F‘lgé_?ﬁ,ﬂ 1
Finanicial liabilitias: R
Aczounis payable P65,006,112 P64.294,764
Arcrued expense 1,256,748 -
Loans payable T37. 300,000 607 500,000

P803,562,860 P671,/94,764




Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is o ensure that it maintains
heallthy capital ratiss in order to support itz business, pay existing obligations and maximize
shareholder value.

The Company manages capital struciure and makes adjustments to it, In light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust capital, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment 1o sharehglders, return capiiai fo sharebolders or Issue new shares. No changes were

mads in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021.

The following table perlains fo the account balances the Company considers as its core
economic capital:

2022 2021 2020
Share capital P285,458,000 P85607,000 P51,500,000

Deficit (67,503,573)  (31,868,001) {16,631,784)
P217,954.4 93,1 30,28 4,8 B

= ___'—'—_.._.‘w

. Cash

This account congizis of;

2022 2021
Cash on hand P168,040 P57.751
Cash in banks 50,836,040 13,271,420

P51,004,080 13,329,211

——— e e
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§. Property and Eguipment

This account consists oft

2021 Additiong Disposal 2022
Cost;
Land P32,412 704 P— P- P32, 412,704
Construction in progress 557,372,311 183,475,141 — 740,847,452
Medical equipment and
fiuctures 10,857,143 30,272,297 - 50,129,440
Office and other
equipment 16,178.563 16,088,495 i 32,267,358
Furniture and fixfres 20 920,958 510,622 - 30,431,580
Container van and
veiisies 2232643 3,043,407 = 5,276,050
645,974,622 242 389,962 -~ 891,364,584
Accumuiated depreciafion:
Office and other
equipment 256,655 1,644,594 = 1,801,248
Fumnitiire and fixtures 9,252 2,092 096 - 3,001,348
Container van and
vahicles 383,800 223,264 - 817,164
659 807 4,859,954 — 5,519,761
Net book value ___P648.314,815 i P885,844,823
2020 Additions Disposal 2021
Cost
Land P32,412,704 P— F— P32,412,704
Consfruction in progress 281,289,561  276.082.730 —  BBT 37231
Madical equipment and
fixtires 1,785,714 2071429 - 10,857,143
Office and other
equipment 604,675 15,573,988 - 16,178,863
Furmiure ang fixiures 45,263 28,874 6395 - 29,920,958
Cortainer van and
vehicles 1,313,000 818,643 = 2,232,643
37452117 331,522,508 — 648974 622
Arncumulated depreciation.
Cffice and ather
equipment 135.680 120,975 - 256,655
Furniiure and fixtures 4 626 4,626 - 9,252
Container van and
vahicles 262 GO0 474 300 203,900
402906 256,901 . 659,807
Met book value P317.048.211 " PG48, 314,815

Land pertains o properties located in Don Alfaro Strest, Tetuan, Zamboanga City, where ifs
hospital bullding is being constructad,

Construction in progress periains o building under construction to be used as hospital bullding

upon corplatian.
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Begnning 2016, the Company eniered into contracts with various contractors and suppliers -
the construction of its hospiial buillding.

The total estimated cost Tor the consiruction of the hospilal building is P1.3 bilion, The tolal
estimaled cost for the whole project uniil full operation is P2 billion.

As per consfruction manager, the estimated perceniage of completion of the consiruction as at
December 31, 2022 are as follews:

Descriptian Progress Report
General requiremeants 100.007%
Earth works 100.00%
Pile driving warks 100,003
Struchiral works 100.00G%
Masonry warks T00.00%
Architectiral works 98.00%
Mechanical works 0B.45%
Elecirical warks 8597%
Sanitary and plumbing works 98.45%
Fire protecton works 98 .52%

Construction of the hospital buiiding is estimated to be compeiad by the 4th guarter of 2023,

The Company entered into two term loan aggreemeris with the Development Bank of the
Philippines (DBP)} in 2018 and in 2021 fo finance the construction of hosgital building and
purchaze of medical equinment and furniture (see Nole 8),

Borrcwing cost from loan related to construction of hospital building were capitalized as part of
the construction in progress amounting 1o P23,311,084 and P22,115,625 in 2022 and 2021,
respeciively.

The carrying amount of the assels held as coiaterals as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as
foiltoivs.

2022 2021
Land P32,412,704 P32,412,704
Ceonstruction in progress 740,847 452  557,3272.2311
Medical equipment and fixziure 50,129,440 10,857,143

PE23,389,586 PGO0,642,158

There were no amount of compensations received from any third parties for items of property
and equipment that were impaired, lost or given up.

Mo impairment loss was recoginized in 2022, 2021 and 2020.

The carrying values of the properiy and equipment approvimate their fair values.
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7. Intangible Asset
The following are the movements of sofheere:
2021 Adritinng Disposal 2022
Cost 134,375 P P- P184,375
Accurulated amortization 10,714 18,437 = 29,151
Net book vaiue F173.661 P155.224
2020 Additions Disposal 2021
Cost Pi07.143 P77 232 P- P184,375
Accumeialed amorlizalion - 10,714 — 10,714
Met book value P107.143 P173,661
kb impairment loss was recognized in 2022, 2021 and 2020.
The carrving value of the Intangible asset approximate iis fair vaiue.
8. Trade and Other Payables

This acoount consists of:

2022 2021
Accounts payable PB5,006,112  PB4,294 Ted
Accrued expense 1.256,748 -
Withhotding tax payatie 165,943 188,363
SSSPHIC/HDMF payabie 54,977 35.370

P66,483,780 P64.518.527

Accourds payable pertains ta short-term, unsecured, noninierest-bearing payable to other party.

Accrued expense periains 0 unpeid professionst fees, securniy expense, outslde services and
oiher expenses incurred but not vel paid as at December 31, 2022,

Loans Payabie

In 2018, the Company eniered irla a Term Loan Agreement with Development Bank of the
Philippines {DBP]} for loan and credit accommoedations to finance the construction of the hospital
bullding. The Term Loan Agreement is secured by the land including the buildings and alf
Improvements,

The terms and conditions of the Term Loan Agreement were as follows:

g} principal amount is payvable monihly beginning March 2, 2023 until February 2, 2034

b) effective interest rate is 5.25% per annum and payabie monthiy

£} conduct its business in an orderly, efficient and customary manner

d} maintain adeguate books, accounts and records

g} comply with apalicabla laws, stahdes rules, regulations, orders and directives of any
govermment agency

f) pay all indebtedness and perform all contractual obligations promply and in accordance with
the terms

g} deliver lo the lender ils Mnancial slalemeits
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h} promptiy give writen notice any legal procaadings and oiher matiars

i} open and maintain depository account

i} environmental compliance

k) not make or permit any matarial change in the characier of its business, or engage in any
business operation or activity other than authorized by law

I} not permit any malerial change in cunership or control of its business or of its capital stock or
in the compaosition of iap-leval managemant

) nat incur additional loan

n} not act a5 guararior or surety

o) not declare or pay dividends

p} not sell, lease, transfer or dispose all or substaniially the properties and assets

q) not extend any loans, advances or subsidias

r} not create or suffer to exist any lien, securily interest, or olher charge or encumbrance |, or any
cther type of preferential amangement

s} not permit the debt o eguity ratio to exceed 2121

) not permit the current ratio fo be less than 111

In 2021, the Company ertered indo @ Term bLoan Agreement with DEP for loan and cradit
accommodalions lo fnance he acquisition of various hospital equipment and building ulilities.
The Term Loan Agreement is secured by the Security Agreement for Movable Property to be
registered under the Personal Property Security Act when the system is in place and Deed of
Assignment of receivables from Philipzine Health Insurance Corporation.

The terms and conditions of the Term Laan Agreement were as foiows:

a) principal amount is payahle monthly beginning February 5, 2023 until July 5, 2037

b) effective interest rate is 5.5% per annum and payable monthly

¢) conduct its business in an ordarly, efficient and cusiomary manner

d} maintzin adegusate books, accounts ard records

e) comply with applicable laws, statules, rules, regulations, orders and direclves of any
Qovernment agency

f) pay all indehiedness and perform all contractiual obligations promplly and in accordance wilh
the terms

g} deliver to the lender its financial sialements

R} promaty give written notice any legal procesdings and other matters

i) open and maintain depository account

i) environmental compliance

k) nigt make or permit any material change in the character of its business, or engage In any
business operation or activity other than authorized by law

I} nat permit any material change in ownership or conirol of its business or of its capital stock or
in the composition of top-level managemeant '

m) not incur additional foan

n) not act as guarantor or surey

o) not declare or pay dividends

p) not sell, lease, transfer or dispose all or substantially the properties and assels

q) not extend any loans, acvances or subsidies

r} not create or suffer o exist any lien, securily inferast, or ather charge or encumbrance , or any
ather type of preferential arrangement

5} not permit the debi to equity ratio to excead 2.3301

t} not permit the current ratio {o be [ess than 1:1
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The movemenis of the loans payable are as follows:

2022 20241

Construction loan
Balance at beginning of year P427.500,000 P360,000,000
Additions 15,000,000 67,500,000
Payments b o
" Balance at end of vear A42 500,000 427 500,000
Equipment loan
Balance at beginning of year 180,000,000 -
Additions 114,800,000 180,000,000
Paymenis - —
___Balance at end of year 254,800,000 180,000,000
Total 737,300,000  GO07.300,000
Less curmrent portion __ 651416355 =
MNoncurrent portion 572!13'3,545 PB07,500,000
The Company incurred bormowing cost as follows:
2022 2029
Construction loan
fnlerest P23,211,084 P22115625
Documeniary stamp fax 112,500 506,250
Gross receipis tax 233,110 221,156

Equipment loan
Interast
Documentary stamp tax
Gross recelpts tax

10,768,583 3,150,000
B&1,000 1,350,000
107,681 31,500

P35,394,378  P27,374,531

Interest incurred from loan related to construction of hospital building were capitalized as part of
the construction in progress amounting to P23,311,024 and P22,115,625 In 2022 and 2021,

respectively.

Interest incurred from loan amounted to P12,083,284, P5,258,506 and P1,152,183 in 2022, 2021
and 2020, respectively, charged as finance cost in the statement of comperehensive income.
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10. Expenses

This account consists of:

2022 2021 2020
Depraciation (Mote 6) P4,859,954 P256,901 P225,930
Salaries and wagas 4,820,640 2,978,084 1,402,685
Insurance 3,184,419 - 1,088,009
Security services 3,019,532 2,295,244 436,425
Professional fees 2,088,712 796,357 £i38,143
Communication, light and water 1,543,177 1,768,792 421,882
Taxes and llcenses 1,278,231 18,948 13,641
Directors' fee 860,000 - -
Supplies 485,333 698,688 188,343
S5S, PHIC and HDMF contributions 380,105 161,806 84,820
Qutside services 305,103 204 923 54 877
Transportation and fravel 215,174 124,368 123,708
Reprasentation 202,000 - -
Fual and oil 186,697 T.225 —_
hestings and forums 157,097 242 558 40,759
Donation 44,134 B85,869 207,054
Amortization (Note 7) 18,437 10,714 -
Trainings and seminars 12,500 - 18,000
Rapairs and maintenace 5,357 39,458 -
Eent {Mote 11} - - 336,960
Miscellaneous 118,545 196,315 21,730

23,605, 7 P8.g77,311 ;

11.

Lease Agreement

The Company entered info a contract of lease for its office space. The lease coniract was
terminated in 2020.

Rent expense charged to aperations amounted to nil in 2022 and 2021, and P336,960 in 2020
{see Note 10).

As at December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, the Company has no cutsianding commitmenis under
non-cancellable operating leases.

12

Related Party Disclosure

Related party relatienships exist when one party has the abiiity to control, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercises significant influence over the
other party in making financial and operating declslons. Such relationship alse exists betwesn

andfor ameng enliles, which are under commeon control with the reporting enterprises and ite key
management personnel, directors, or its shareholders.

In considering each relaisd party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship, and not merely the legal form. Related parties may be Individuais or corporate
entities,
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Compensation of Key Management Personnel

2022 2021 2020
Short-term benefiis P P- pP=-
Relirement benefils - = o
Directors' fees 660,000 - -
- P660,000 P P—_
13. Income Tax
The provision for income tax for 2022 represents MCIT.
The following are the computations of MCIT:
. 2022 2021 2020
Taxable income F53,353 = =1
—— =l — ——
Tax due at ﬁﬁ P534 =3 g = Ty
= === s — =i
The reconciliation of the tax computed at statutory tax rale to provision for income tax follow:
_ 2022 2021 2020
Tax at applicable stalutory income fax rate (P8,908,760) (P3,808,054) (P1,613,863)
Adjustments for:
Mondeductihle raprasentaiion 50,267 - =
Unrecognizad daferrad tax assels 8,858,927 3,800,054 1,613 863
- 5534 P= P

As at December 31, 2022, the Company has NOLCO which can be carried forward as a
deduction for the next three consecutive faxable years immediately following the vear of such
loss, under certain conditions, as provided under Section 34(D) of the Tax Code. Details are as
follows:

Applled/ Remaining

Date Incurred Amount Expired Balance Expiry Date
December 31, 2022 P35,433 572 P- P35433572 2025
Decambar 31, 2018 4,051,473 {4,051,473) - 2022

P39,485,045  (P4,051,473) P35,433,572

As at December 31, 2022, the Company has NOLCOQ in taxable years 2021 and 2020 which can

be carmied forward as a deduction for the next five consecutive taxable years immediately
following the year of such loss, pursuant to the Bayanihan to Recover As One Act. Details are as
follows:

Applied/ Remaining

Date Incurred Amount Expired Balance Expiry Date
December 31, 2021 F15.236,217 P— P15,236,217 2026
December 31, 2020 6,455,450 — 6,455,450 2025

F21,601,667 P—  £21,601,667
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Details of Company's MCIT which can be dlaimed 2s tax credis agzainst regular income tax are
as follpws:

Apoied/ Remaiing

Date Incurred Ameount Expired Balance Expiry Date
December 31, 2022 Po34 P- P534 2025

The management belicves that the Company will not be able to realize the tax benefits from
NOLCO and MCIT in the fulure, The Company provided full valuation afiowance on its NOLCO
and MCIT, thus, no deferred tax asset was set up.

14. Loss Per Share
Basic loss per share is compuied as follows:
ey s 2022 2021 2020
Met loss (P35,635,572) (P15236.217) (PG,455.450)
Weighted average number of
shares oulsianding 204,275 123,000 95,000
Basic loss per share (P174.45) {(P123.87) (PET.24)
There were no common slock equivalents outstanding that would require calculation of diluted
loss per share.
15. Changes in Liakilities Arising from Financing Activities
The follgwing table summarizes the changes in liabililies arising from financing activilies:
Foreign
exchange
2021 Cashflows  movemeni 2022
Loans payabla Pa07 500,000 P129,800,000 P- PT737,300,000
Foreign
exchange
2020 Cash fiows movement 2021
Loans payabie P360,000,000  P247 500.000 P—  P607,500,000
- = — oo
Foreign
exchange
. 2018 Cash flews movement 2020
avan ; 30 00 = 0
Loans payabie P225,000,000  P135.000,000 P~ P360 000,000
16. Impact of Coronavirus of 2012 {COVID-19) Update

The Company has been exposed to the risks brought about by COVID-19, & novel strain of
coronavirus, which has rapidly spread worldwide and reached a pandemic magnitude as it
continues to affect more and more couninies and ferniories.
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On March 18, 2020, the President of the Philippines issued Proclamation No. 829 declaring 2
state of calamity throughoit the Philippines due ta COVID-18 which resuited to the imposition of
an Enhanced Community Quarantine throughout Luzon starting midnight of March 16, 2020 until
May 15, 2020. As of to date, Zamboanga Gily is under Alert Level 1 quarantine classification.

The enhanced community guarantine, travel restriclions, temporary closure of different
establishments, and social distancing measures imposed by the government exposed the
Company's operations to risks that may impact #s financial performance.

The construction of Company's hospital buiiding has started in June 2016. However, due 0
COVID-19 outbreak, delivery of construction supplies was postponed and deployment of
engineers and construction workers were posiponed resulting to a deiay in the construction of
the hospital building. Upon the lifting of some quarantine reatrictions particularly sea travel, the
contractor continues the construciion and catches up with the delay.

The events surrounding the outbreak did not have a significant impact to the Company's financial
position and performance as at and for the vear ended Decamber 31, 2022, Nevertheless, the
Company will continue to monitor the situalion.

17.

Ewvents After the End of the Reporting Period

No events occurred bstween the statements of financial position date and the date on which
these financial statements were approved by the Company’s Board of Directors that would
require adjiustments to or disclosure in the financial statements.

18.

Reclassification of Account

The following accounts on Decamber 31, 2021 have been reclassilied to conform will the
December 31, 2022 financial statements presentation:

Reclassified From Reclassifed To Amount
Construcdion in progress Construction in progress PS57,372,31
{prazented undar {undar property and equipment}
noncurrant asseis)
Other current assat [nput VAT 63039838
{presented under {presented under current assels)
current asseds)

19.

Supplemental Information Required Under Revenue Regulation No. 15-2010

On November 25, 2010, the BIR issued Revenue Reguiation (RR) 15-2010, which reguires

certain information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year to
be disclosed as part of the notes to financial statements. These supplemental Information, which

are additions to the disclosUres required under PFRS, are presented as follows:
VAT Owutput Tax

NetSales  Output VAT
Taxable sales BE53,304 PeAnT




VAT Input Tax
Balance at January 1 P63,932,839
Current year's domestic purchases 16,192,070

80,134,909

VAT ouiput (6,407)
Balance at Decamber 31 P80,125,502
m—— — —— . =

Taxes on Imporiation

In 2022, the Company has not imparted geods for business use. No customs duties and tariff
feas were accrued or paid during the yaar.

Excise Tax
The Company does not have exdise tax in 2022 since it does not have any transzactions which

are subject to excise fax.

Withholding Taxes
The details of tofal withholding taxes are as follows:

Compensation and bensiiis P174,061
Creditable - at source 1,026,644
F1,200,705

Pocumentary Stamp Tax
The Company paid documentary stamp tax for the availment of loan amounting to PE73,500 in

2022 charged to finance cost.

Taxes and Licen=os
The details of taxes and licenses included in expenses are as follows:

Local parmits P76, 782
Resl property fax 40,874
Annual registration 4,000
Others 458 475

P1,278,231

Deficlency Tax Assessment
The Company does not have any deficlency tax assessments with BIR or tax cases cutstarding
or pending in courts of bodies outside of the BIR as of Decamber 31, 2022,



ALLYED CARE EXPERTS (ACE) MEDICAL CENTER-ZAMBOANGA CITY, INC.

SCHEDULE OF TAXES AND LICENSES
CALENDAR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Kind of Tax Official Receipt Number Dhate Paid
Local parmits Variouis Various P776.782
Real property tex Various Various 40,974
Annual Tegisiration Variows Variouws 1,000
Others Warious WVarious 459475
TOTAL [To Schedule 4 - Iiom 32 of Ordinary Alvwable liemized Deductions
(BIR Form 172 - KT)] P1.278.231

————
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BRE/BOA Ascredintion No, D966
September 22, 2020, valid until
August 22 2023

SEC Accraditation No. 0868-SEC (Group &)
lssued November 24, 2020
Valld for Financial Periods 2020 to 2024

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
TO ACCOMPANY INCOME TAX RETURN

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors

Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center-Zamboanga City, Inc.
{Doing Business Under the Name and Style of

Premier Medical Center Zamboanga)

Don Alfaro Street, Tetuan

Zamboanga City

We have audited the financial statements of Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center-Zamboanga
City, Inc. (Doing Business Under the Name and Style of Premier Medical Center Zamboanga) for the
year ended December 31, 2022 on which we have rendered the attached report dated July 26, 2023.

In compliance with Revenue Regulations V-20, we are stating the following:

1. The taxes paid or accrued by the above company for the year ended December 31, 2022 are
shown in the Schedule of Taxes and Licenses attached ta the Annual Income Tax Return.

2. Mo partner of our Firm is related by consanguinity or affinity to the president, manager or
principal stockholder of the Company.

For the Firm: MENDOZA QUERIDO & CO.

RICHARD 5. QUERIDO

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 34807

SEC Accreditation No. 84807-SEC (Group A)
Issued November 24, 2020
Walid for Financial Periods 2020 to 2024

TIN 102-094-633

BIR Accreditation No. 08-002617-002-2022
January 25, 2022, valid until January 24, 2025

PTR Mo. 9569440, January 7, 2023, Makati City

July 26, 2023
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FRCMBOA Accreditation Mo, 0868
Beptember 22, 2020, valid uniil
August 22, 2023

SEC Accreditation No. 0886-SEC (Group A)
lesued November 24, 2020
Valid for Financial Periods 2020 to 2024

INDEFPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors

Allied Care Experts {(ACE) Medical Center-Zamboanga City, Inc.
{Doing Business Under the Name and Style of

Premier Medical Center Zamboanga)

Don Alfaro Street, Tetuan

Zamboanga City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of
Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center-Zamboanga City, Inc. (Doing Business Under the Name
and Style of Premier Medical Center Zamboanga) (the Company) as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated July 26 2023. Qur audit was made
for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
accompanying supplementary schedules required by paragraph 7, Part Il of Revised Securities
Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 68 (2019) (Annex 68-J), Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available
for Dividend Declaration, Map of the Relationships Between and Among the Companies in the Group,
its Ultimate Parent and Co-subsidiaries, and Schedule of Financial Scundness Indicators are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. These schedules are presented for purposes of
complying with Revised SRC Rule 68 (2019}, and are not part of the basic financial statements.
These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the information required
to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

For the Firm: MENDOZA QUERIDO & CO.

1

RICHMARD 5. QUERIDO

Fartner

CPA Certificate No. 84807

SEC Accreditation No. 84807-SEC {Group A)
Issued November 24, 2020
Valid for Financial Periods 2020 to 2024

TIN 102-094-633

BIR Accreditation No, 08-002617-002-2022
January 25, 2022, valid until January 24, 2025

FTR No. 9569440, January 7, 2023, Makati City

July 26, 2023



Mendoza Querido & Co.
o 18" Floor, The Salcedo Towers
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PRC/BOA Accraditation Mo, 0088
September 27, 2020, valid until
August 22 2023

SEC Accreditation No, DBEB-SEC (Grolip A)
lesued Novembar 24, 2020
Velid for Financial Periods 2020 to 2024

To the Stockhelders and the Board of Directors

Allied Care Experts {ACE) Medical Center-Zamboanga City, Inc.
{Doing Business Under the Name and Styfe of

Premier Medical Center Zamboanga)

Don Alfaro Street, Tetuan

Zamboanga City

We have audited the financial statements of Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center-Zamboanga
City, Inc. (Doing Business Under the Name and Style of Premier Medical Center Zamboanga) for the
year ended December 31, 2022, on which we have rendered the attached report dated July 26, 2023

In compliance with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, we are stating that the said
Company has a total number of thirty-six (36) stockholders owning one hundred (100) or more shares
each.

For the Firm: MENDOZA QUERIDO & CO.

RICHARD S. QUERIDO

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 84807

SEC Accreditation No. 84807-SEC (Group A)
Issued Movember 24, 2020
Walid for Financial Periods 2020 to 2024

TIMN 102-094-633

BIR Accreditation Mo, 08-002617-002-2022
January 25, 2022, valid until January 24, 2025

PTR No. 9569440, January 7, 2023, Makati City

July 26, 2023



